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St Andrews Character Appraisal

1.0 Introduction
1.1 The Appraisal

This appraisal will identify, analyse and describe the
historic and architectural character of the St Andrews
Conservation Area. It will identify the factors that lead to
the declaration of the Conservation Area. It will highlight
the prevailing quality, level of preservation of the details
that define the character of the conservation area.

The analysis will consider the merits of the layourt,
streetscape, buildings and the natural environment. It will
identify the principal elements of these factors that define
the character and establish how the ongoing alteration of
these essential elements and gradual development has
either preserved or detracted from the overall quality.
Following on from the appraisal a series of
recommendations will be produced.

The appraisal will outline a strategy for the future of the
area suggesting further protection and controls that will
prevent future decline.

The St Andrews Conservation Area was originally

designated in December 1983 as fA0ld Church Lan
original designation was subsequently revised on 11"

January 1993. An Article 4 (2) Direction was put in place

in February 2005.

List of properties within the Conservation Area:

Birchen Grove: 49 - 51
Church Lane: St Andrews New Church,
Church Hall & Vicarage
Church Walk: 17 12,14-16
Leith Close: 17V 35,2-32
Old Church Lane: 17 29,671 26,4071 44, The Lodge.
Orchard Lodge: 17 4
St Andrewbs Old Church and Cemetery Land
St Andrews Road: 17 23,271 24, Hazeldene
Tudor Gardens: 175,271 2a
Tudor Close: 17 26 (consec.), Tudor Lodge, Sandon
Wells Drive: 17 31,2-32

1.2 Planning Policy Context

Definition of a Conservation Area

Conservation Areas are areas of special architectural and
historic character with an overall quality worthy of
preservation and enhancement. The strength of their
character is dependent on the way the individual buildings
and gardens compliment each other. The Local Planning
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Authority is responsible for designating Conservation
Areas from the law set down in the Planning (Listed
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. This
enables the Council, with the aid of localised design
criteria. and additional controls over Permitted
Development, to influence the type of physical changes
that would otherwise be detrimental to the area.

Statutory Framework

Local Authorities are obliged by the Planning (Listed
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, to undertake
periodic reviews and re surveys of their Conservation
Areas. The Act requires this to ensure that Conservation
Areas retain the character that brought about their
designation. If Conservation areas retain their designation
but do not retain their essential character, they undermine
the credibility of a Conservation Area status. They also
dilute the available resources for Conservation Work.

Designations

The standards by which historic areas are judged worthy
of Conservation Area status have changed significantly,
(In particular since the publication of PPG15 in 1994).
Conservation Area assessment has become more
stringent to prevent the designation of areas that either,
have very low levels of building and landscape
preservation or, are designated for strategic reasons. The
Borough like many other Local Authorities has a number
of Conservation Areas that were designhated some time
ago and which are no longer of a sufficient standard to
retain their designation as Conservation Areas.

Policy Context

Conservation Areas are protected by hierarchy of policies
at national regional and local levels. The Planning (listed
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 sets out the
legal framework for the development and protection of the
historic environment. Planning Policy Guidance Note 15
expands upon and develops the policies from the Act
which together with London Plan establishes a regional
frame wor k for t he devel opment of Londonos
environment. The historic areas of the Borough are also
subject to local control through the core policies of the
Local Development Framework and Supplementary
Planning guidance.

2.0 Location and Setting
2.1 Location and Context
The Conservation area lies within the Welsh Harp ward of

the London Borough of Brent and has a population of
approximately 692 covering an area of 129719mz2. To the
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west of the Conservation Area lies Brent Reservoir with
adjacent green spaces (Welsh Harp Open Space and
Neasden Recreation Ground). Directly behind the
dwellings of Leith Close and Wells Drive (to the west) lies
Birchen Grove Allotments. To the north of the
Conservation Area, residential suburban development
predominates. At the east end of Old Church Lane is
Blackbird Hill, a busy street with high levels of traffic
leading towards Neasden and the North Circular Road.

Change and Development

As with all Conservation Areas, St Andrews is at risk from
insensitive development. As families grow the need to
extend and improve homes becomes more acute. The
housing stock is also of an age where more significant
maintenance work is required prompting owners to
replace doors and windows and roof coverings. There is
also the pressure to split larger houses into smaller multi
occupancy units which not only has an impact on the
houses but the setting of buildings and the number of cars
that residents want to park off street. However, residents
are becoming more aware of the value of an historic
house and its location in an area of character and more
owner s ar e keen to retain
prompted them to buy their home. The Conservation
Areas of Brent are all now protected by an Article 4
Direction which should help to stop the decline in
character through permitted development, and possibly in
time reverse the influence of unsympathetic development.

2.2 General Character and Plan Form

The special character of the area is based not only on the
design of the buildings and that of the open space but also
on their street setting and the street scenes. The tree lined
streets are an integral part of the character of this area.
Attractive planting of Silver Birch trees on street, and the
variety of other species of trees and hedges such as privet,
holly and conifers planted within gardens contribute to a
greater sense of the rural idyll which was a core aim of
suburban developments in this period. The presence of
wide grass verges, particularly on Old Church Lane, create
a buffer between the road and pavement and the generous
front gardens of properties enhances the feeling of open
space. Within the Kingsbury Park estate the grass verges
are smaller, but the on street tree planting is fairly extensive
and the addition of landscaped islands as centre pieces for
the cul-de-sacs creates heightened perceptions of a rural
location. Boundary treatments within the Kingsbury Park
estate are predominantly made up of a simple soldier
course of brickwork. This is a key feature of the estate
because it allows for a degree of visual interaction between
residents that would be lost if higher, more private
boundaries were introduced. The boundary treatment in
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St Andrews Character Appraisal

Tudor Close is also low and relatively open when compared
with other residential developments.

2.3 Landscape Setting

The topography of the Conservation Area is relatively
inconsistent. The undulating nature of the area creates
visual interest and a variety of different views. From the
south, Old Church Lane falls towards the cemetery and
then rises towards the old church. Tudor Close gently falls
from the top down to Tudor Gardens which creates a
picturesque view of the New Church. The topographical
character means that perambulations around the roads and
avenues are full of revealed views as significant corners
are turned within the Conservation Area. Tudor Close

3.0 Historic Development and Archaeology

St Andrews c. 2006
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3.1  Origins and Historic Development

The Conservation Area is centred on the historic core of
the original village of Kingsbury. The only survivors of the
medieval village are the alignment and character of Old
Church Lane itself and the Old Church of St Andrew with
its surrounding ditch and embankment.

Old Church Lane is made up of semi-detached and
detached two storey houses mostly developed between
1923 and 1929 as the Blackbird Farm Estate, Kingsbury
Hill by the Mapesbury, Cricklewood builder, C.W.B.
Simmonds. The north-east leg of Old Church Lane from
its junction with Church Walk forms the southern
boundary with hedges and trees of the old church of St
Andrew.

The Conservation Area takes in the old church and the
medieval embankment and ditch around it and the
churchyard extension of 1901. The church, listed Grade 1,
is probably the oldest building in the Borough being
erected about 1200. The structure incorporates Roman
building material which can also be found scattered about
the churchyard indicating an earlier occupation of the site.
This was the centre of Kingsbury at the time of the
Doomsday Book (1086) and the remnants of a medieval
ditch and embankment still survive. To the north of the
site lies the "new" church of St Andrew re-built here in
1933-1934 to designs by W.A. Forsyth who designed and
simultaneously built the adjoining vicarage. The church
which is listed Grade II* was originally built near Oxford
Circus in 1844 - 47 to designs by S. W. Daukes. The
interior is a fine example of Victorian Architecture,
incorporating the work of notable architects of the time
including Street, Pearson and Butterfield. The decorative
freestone dressed exterior with its three-storey tower and
spire is a dominant feature of the local street scenes.

Tudor Close is an estate of bungalows built to designs by
P Rains in accordance with bye law approval dated
November 1927. The corner stone for the reconstruction
of St Andrews (new) church was not laid until October
1933 so the dominance and siting of the church opposite
the beginning of the cul-de-sac is as much fortuitous as it
is a striking example of townscape.

The mock Tudor Kingsbury Park Estate of two-storey
purpose built flats, by the architect Samuel A.S. Yeo,
similarly benefits from its setting and layout. In this case,
with its construction in 1937, the impact of St Andrew's
church was no accident and the architect established an
intricate layout to maximise the benefit of this landmark.
The Kingsbury Park Estate was developed for the
Neasden Park Building Company under the Town and
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Country Planning Act 1932 under the draft Kingsbury
Town Planning Scheme and Wembley U.D.C. bye laws. It
is a fine example of a planned estate notable for its layout
and amenity areas.

3.2 Archaeological Significance and Potential

The cemetery of the Old Church of St Andrew a series of
tomb stones that are statutorily listed at grade Il and the
area has been designated as a Site of Archaeological
Importance within the Unitary Development Plan.

4.0 Spatial analysis
4.1 Character and inter-relationship of spaces

The special character of the Conservation Area was and
is derived from this historic setting and the inter-
relationships of more modern 20" Century suburban
estates of rich quality and varied design. The chief
components of this are the mock-Tudor houses by C.W.B.
Si mmonds for the Kingsbury
individualistic designs fo
Andrewds New Church. The |
area far beyond the curtilage of its own site for its
substantial tower and spire form a focal point for a
number of local views.

4.2 Views and Vistas

The most significant views both in and out of the
Conservation Area are towards the New Church. The
church plays a vital part in creating the special identity of
the conservation area due to its presence within most of
the local views. The views are appropriately framed by
the houses that flank the roads, and the presence of
significant amounts of greenery aids in promoting a rural
village quality within the area.

5.0 Character Analysis

51 Definition of Character Zones

The character of St Andrews Conservation Area is
defined by three distinctive areas of housing based
around Old Church Lane, Tudor Close and the Kingsbury
Estate which all surround the two churches.
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5.2 Activity, Prevailing and Former Uses

The Conservation Area is based around the historic core
of the original village of Kingsbury. The only uses within
this area are ecclesiastical and residential.

5.3 Architectural and Historic Qualities of the
Buildings

Old Church Lane is made up of semi-detached and
detached two storey houses. The principal design is
mock-Tudor with pegged timber beams at first floor level,
leaded light windows and red tiled roofs. The infill panels
between the timbers are either rendered (some with
pargeting) or are of attractive patterned brick and tile.
Old Church Lane which retains something of its former
rural appearance is linked to Birchen Grove by a footpath
- Church Walk - which was constructed along a former
right of way to provide access to an estate of flats i Old
St. Andrew's Mansions - developed by Ernest George
Trobridge between 1934 and 1936. The flats are two
storeys and are built of brick and rendering with gabled
roofs and tall impressive chimney stacks. Trobridge's
architectural style already the subject of Conservation
Area status elsewhere is notable here for the exquisite
guality of the arched brick entrances and end wall details.
On the gable end of No.8 OId St. Andrews Mansions "the
chimney climbs lazily skyward having meandered across
the walls; the weight of the roof is carried at the eaves by
differently sized stacks of tile which bear onto corner
windows". Care and prestige is implied by the
craftsmanship of the bricklayer.

Tudor Close is an estate of detached and semi-detached
bungalows built to designs by P Rains. The buildings are
typified by the use of exposed brickwork up to the level of
fenestration, which is rendered up to the roofline. There is
usually a front gable with varying arrangements of
decorative timber beams. Red tiled roofs predominate
with small central chimney stacks and taller rear stacks.
Windows are leaded with projecting 45 degree bays.

Kingsbury Park Estate comprising Leith Close, St
Andrews Road and Wells Drive is made up of two storey
mock-Tudor purpose built flats designed by architect
Samuel A.S. Yeo. These flats appear as semi-detached
houses with two separate entrances (either at the front, or
with one at the side). Most of the properties have
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beams with rendered infill panels at first floor. Small Oriel
windows are present at the first floor of many of the
properties. The vast majority of properties have two storey
bays with leaded windows. The estate is laid out on three
cul-de-sacs with a generous amount of planting.
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